
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion 

Gwledig 
Lleoliad: 

Hybrid – Ystafelloedd Pwyllgora 1 a 2 a  

Chynhadledd Fideo drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 27 Hydref 2022 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Robert Donovan 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddEconomi@senedd.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30)  

 

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (09.30-11.40)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

 

2 Papurau i'w nodi 

(09.30)   

 

2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd 

 (Tudalennau 1 - 2)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Rheoliadau’r Fasnach mewn Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion Perthynol (Diwygio a 

Swyddogaethau Deddfwriaethol) 2022 

 

2.2 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd 

 (Tudalennau 3 - 6)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Rheoliadau Anifeiliaid ac Iechyd Anifeiliaid, Bwyd Anifeiliaid a Bwyd, 

Planhigion ac Iechyd Planhigion (Diwygio) 2022 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

3 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 5 

(09.30-10.30) 

   

Andy Richardson, Cadeirydd, Bwrdd Diwydiant Bwyd a Diod Cymru 

Gwyn Howells, Prif Weithredwr, Hybu Cig Cymru 

Simon Wright, Cyfarwyddwr Bwyd a’r Economi Wledig, Prifysgol Cymru y 

Drindod Dewi Sant a Pherchennog, Wright’s Independent Foods Ltd 

 

Egwyl (10.30-10.40)  

 

4 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 6 

(10.40-11.40) (Tudalennau 7 - 48)  

 

Jerry Langford, Rheolwr Materion Cyhoeddus Coed Cadw 

Anthony Geddes, Rheolwr Cenedlaethol Cymru, Confor 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Coed Cadw - Papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig) 

Confor - Papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig) 

Briff Ymchwil 

 

5 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Bil Protocol Gogledd 

Iwerddon 

(11.40-11.45) (Tudalennau 49 - 73)  

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Nodyn Cyngor Cyfreithiol (Saesneg yn unig) 

Briff Ymchwil 



 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

(11.45)   

 

7 Preifat 

(11.45-12.00) (Tudalennau 74 - 78) 

  

Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Trafod y dystiolaeth 

Trafod Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Bil Protocol Gogledd 

Iwerddon 

Adolygu’r Adroddiad Monitro Masnach drafft 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Adroddiad Monitro Masnach Ryngwladol (Saesneg yn unig) 



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd  

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/LG/2452/22 
 
 
Paul Davies AS 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 
 

Paul.Davies@senedd.wales 
 

21 Hydref 2022 
 
 
Annwyl Paul, 
 
Rheoliadau’r Fasnach mewn Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion Perthynol (Diwygio a 
Swyddogaethau Deddfwriaethol) 2022 
 
Hoffwn roi gwybod i'r Pwyllgor fy mod yn rhoi fy nghydsyniad i’r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros 
yr Amgylchedd, Bwyd a Materion Gwledig osod Rheoliadau’r Fasnach mewn Anifeiliaid a 
Chynhyrchion Perthynol (Diwygio a Swyddogaethau Deddfwriaethol) 2022 ("y Rheoliadau 
drafft") ar 20 Hydref 2022. 
 
Bydd y Rheoliadau drafft yn cael eu gwneud o dan Ddeddf yr Undeb Ewropeaidd (Ymadael) 
2018. Byddant yn mynd i'r afael â methiannau cyfraith yr UE a ddargedwir rhag 
gweithredu'n effeithiol a diffygion eraill sy'n deillio o ymadawiad y Deyrnas Unedig â’r Undeb 
Ewropeaidd. Mae cyfraith yr UE a ddargedwir yn ymwneud â mewnforio anifeiliaid a 
chynhyrchion anifeiliaid perthynol, neu symud anifeiliaid a chynhyrchion anifeiliaid drwy 
Brydain Fawr.  
 
Mae'r Rheoliadau drafft yn addasu Cyfarwyddebau'r Undeb Ewropeaidd, yn trosglwyddo 
swyddogaethau cyrff yr UE o fewn y Cyfarwyddebau UE hynny i'r awdurdod priodol ac yn 
diwygio Rheoliadau’r Fasnach mewn Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion Perthynol 2011 a 
Rheoliadau’r Fasnach mewn Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion Perthynol (Yr Alban) 2011 i 
ddiweddaru'r drefn ddeddfwriaethol a gweithredu addasiadau a throsglwyddo 
swyddogaethau. 
  
Cyn bo hir, bydd Gweinidogion Cymru yn gwneud rheoliadau cyfatebol, a fydd yn creu nifer 
o bwerau gwneud rheoliadau i Weinidogion Cymru ac yn diwygio Rheoliadau’r Fasnach 
mewn Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion Perthynol (Cymru) 2011. Fodd bynnag, hoffwn dynnu eich 
sylw at reoliad 4(3) ac 8(2) o'r Rheoliadau drafft sy'n darparu, os bydd Gweinidogion 
Cymru'n rhoi cydsyniad, y caiff yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol arfer pwerau gwneud rheoliadau, 
fel awdurdod priodol mewn perthynas â Chymru.  

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddEconomy@senedd.wales


 
Mae deddfwriaeth a wnaed o dan Ddeddf yr Undeb Ewropeaidd (Ymadael) 2018 yn dod o 
dan eithriadau o fewn Deddf Llywodraeth Cymru 2006 (Diwygio) 2021, ac felly ni fyddai 
creu'r swyddogaethau 'cydredol plws' hyn yn amharu ar allu'r Senedd i ddeddfu yn y maes 
hwn yn y dyfodol, pe bai'n dymuno gwneud hynny.   
 
Mae swyddogaethau tebyg yng nghyd-destun Iechyd a Lles Anifeiliaid wedi'u cymeradwyo'n 
flaenorol ar y sail bod buddiant cydfuddiannol i bob gweinyddiaeth wrth gymhwyso mesurau 
cydlynol i atal clefydau  ac mae angen i'r swyddogaethau yn y Rheoliadau drafft weithio ar 
gyfer Prydain Fawr gyfan. Ar ben hynny, maent yn cael eu harfer yng nghyd-destun 
Fframwaith Iechyd a Lles Anifeiliaid Cyffredin y DU gyda phrosesau llywodraethu a ddiffinnir 
yn glir ar gyfer ymgysylltu traws-lywodraethol. Bydd unrhyw newidiadau polisi neu ddefnydd 
o'r pwerau yn cael eu trafod yn y Grŵp Polisi Clefydau Anifeiliaid, sef corff llywodraethu'r 
Fframwaith Cyffredin hwn, a lle caiff penderfyniadau polisi eu gwneud drwy gonsensws. 
 
Mae'n bwysig nodi bod gallu'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol i arfer y swyddogaeth hon yn dibynnu 
ar gydsyniad Gweinidogion Cymru. Rydym yn rhagweld mai dim ond o dan amgylchiadau 
eithriadol y byddai hyn yn digwydd. Mae'r swyddogaeth hon felly'n briodol ac yn 
adlewyrchu'r hyn sydd eisoes yn digwydd mewn deddfwriaeth a phrosesau gweinyddol eraill 
yn y maes polisi hwn.  
 
Hoffwn sicrhau'r pwyllgor hwn mai polisi arferol Llywodraeth Cymru yw deddfu dros Gymru 
ar faterion datganoledig. Ond mewn rhai amgylchiadau mae manteision i gydweithio gyda 
Llywodraeth y DU pan fo sail resymegol glir dros wneud hynny. Ar yr achlysur hwn, felly, 
rwy'n rhoi fy nghydsyniad i'r Rheoliadau hyn er mwyn sicrhau effeithlonrwydd a hwylustod 
wrth newid polisi yn y dyfodol a chadw at rwymedigaethau rhyngwladol, a sicrhau 
cydgysylltiad a chysondeb traws-lywodraethol. 
 
Bydd y rheoliadau'n cael eu gosod ar ffurf ddrafft gerbron Senedd y DU ar 20 Hydref 2022 i 
ddod i rym y diwrnod yn dilyn dadl a fydd yn cael ei chynnal rhwng 11 Tachwedd a 01 
Rhagfyr.  
  
Rwyf wedi ysgrifennu llythyr tebyg at Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r 
Cyfansoddiad. 
 
Cofion,  

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/LG/2595/22 
 
 
Paul Davies AS 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig  
 
paul.davies@senedd.wales 
 
 
 

18 October 2022 
 

 
 
Annwyl Paul, 
 

PARTHED: Rheoliadau Anifeiliaid ac Iechyd Anifeiliaid, Bwyd Anifeiliaid a Bwyd, 
Planhigion ac Iechyd Planhigion (Diwygio) 2022 

 

Ysgrifennaf at y Pwyllgor i roi gwybod fy mod wedi rhoi cydsyniad i’r Ysgrifenydd Gwladol 
arfer pŵer deddfwriaethol dirprwyedig mewn maes datganoledig mewn perthynas â 
Chymru. Gofynnodd y cyn-Weinidog Gwladol dros Ffermio, Pysgodfeydd a Bwyd, Victoria 
Prentis AS am gydsyniad i wneud Rheoliadau Anifeiliaid ac Iechyd Anifeiliaid, Bwyd 
Anifeiliaid a Bwyd, Planhigion ac Iechyd Planhigion (Diwygio) 2022. Bydd y Rheoliadau hyn 
yn gymwys i Gymru, Lloegr a’r Alban, ac eithrio rheoliadau 24 a 25, sy’n gymwys yn Lloegr 
yn unig. Bydd yr offeryn statudol yn cael ei wneud o dan adran 8(1) o Ddeddf yr Undeb 
Ewropeaidd (Ymadael) 2018 a bydd yn ddarostyngedig i’r weithdrefn gadarnhaol ddrafft.  

 

Mae’r Rheoliadau yn cynnig diwygio cyfraith uniongyrchol yr Undeb Ewropeaidd a 
ddargedwir mewn perthynas â rheolaethau swyddogol ac  iechyd anifeiliaid a phlanhigion,  
er mwyn sicrhau bod y cyfreithiau'n gweithredu'n effeithiol yn dilyn ymadawiad y Deyrnas 
Unedig â’r Undeb Ewropeaidd. Mae manylion y diwygiadau i’w gweld yn Atodiad A.  
 

 
Fel arfer, polisi Llywodraeth Cymru yw deddfu i Gymru mewn materion sydd o fewn 

cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol. Er hynny, mewn amgylchiadau penodol, mae manteision mewn 

cydweithio â Llywodraeth y Deyrnas Unedig a gweinyddiaethau datganoledig eraill pan mai 

hynny yw’r peth rhesymol i’w wneud.  

Tudalen y pecyn 3

Eitem 2.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:paul.davies@senedd.wales


 

 

Y tro hwn, rwy’n credu ei bod yn briodol rhoi cydsyniad i’r Rheoliadau, sy’n gwneud cywiriadau 

ac yn ymdrin â materion gweithredol o ran Cymru, ac ar ei rhan, er mwyn effeithlonrwydd a 

hwylustod ac er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb ac eglurder o ran y llyfr statud. Rwy’n gwneud hynny 

gan gadw’r gallu i ddargyfeirio yn y dyfodol, yn unol a’n cymhwysedd deddfwriaethol. 

 

Mae’r offeryn hwn yn ymdrin â mân ddiffygion sy’n codi oherwydd ymadael âr Undeb 

Ewropeaidd, a diffygion eraill nas rhagwelwyd ar adeg ymadael â’r Undeb Ewropeaidd, ac 

mae’n sicrhau gweithrediad trefn fewnforio ar gyfer y Deyrnas Unedig gyfan. Felly, 

ymddengys yn briodol i arfer y swyddogaethau hyn ar y cyd gan gofio bod angen i hyn weithio 

i’r Deyrnas Unedig gyfan, neu i Brydain Fawr (lle mae rhyddid i symud), er mwyn sicrhau bod 

safonau cyffredinol ac i leihau achosion o amharu ar fasnachwyr, awdurdodau lleol ac 

asiantaethau arolygu fel ei gilydd. 

 

Rwy’n anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at y Cwnsler Cyffredinol a Gweinidog y Cyfansoddiad, y 
Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd a’r Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad. 
 
 
Cofion, 
 

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



 

 

Atodiad A 
 
Rhan 2 o’r offeryn statudol:  

• Diwygio Rheoliad (EU) Rhif 2016/2031 - Cosbau. Mae’r darpariaethau hyn yn 
ymwneud â chreu troseddau ac maent yn nodi rheolau ar gosbau priodol mewn 
perthynas â phlâu a chlefydau planhigion ac yn adfer Erthygl 108 o’r Rheoliadau 
Iechyd Planhigion. 

Rhan 3: 

• Diwygio Erthygl 3 ac Erthygl 4 o Reoliad Rheolaethau Swyddogol (OCR)/ 
Rheoliad (EU) Rhif 2017/625 er mwyn dynodi’r ‘Appropriate Authority’ (Awdurdod 
Priodol) fel darpar ‘Competent Authority’ (Awdurdod Cymwys) yn gliriach.  

• Diwygio Erthygl 48 o’r OCR er mwyn galluogi’r awdurdod priodol i fabwysiadu 
gweithredoedd dirprwyedig er mwyn sefydlu niferoedd o dan Erthygl 48(g).  

• Diwygio Erthygl 115 o’r OCR mewn perthynas â chynlluniau wrth gefn ar gyfer bwyd 
a bwyd anifeiliaid gan y ‘Competent Authorities’ (Awdurdodau Cymwys) neu 
‘Appropriate Authority’ (Awdurdod Priodol). Mae’r diwygiad hefyd yn anelu at ddileu’r 
cyfeiriad at Erthygl 55(1) o’r Rheoliadau Cyfraith Bwyd Cyffredinol 178/2002 oedd wedi 
eu dirymu cyn  hyn. 

• Diwygio Erthygl 128 o’r OCR sy’n ymwneud â phwerau’r ‘Appropriate Authority’ 
(Awdurdod Priodol) i wneud rheoliadau i ddiogelu bioddiogelwch Prydain Fawr os oes 
brigiad o achosion o glefyd mewn trydedd gwlad. 

• Diwygio Erthygl 139 o’r OCR er mwyn ceisio ymdrin â diffyg yn y ddeddfwriaeth 
OCR bresennol drwy ddarparu pŵer i’r ‘Appropriate Authority’ (Awdurdod Priodol) 
greu cosbau am beidio â cydymffurfio â'r OCR a deddfwriaeth ategol berthnasol. 

• Diwygio Erthygl 150 o’r OCR er mwyn estyn y cyfnodau trosiannol y darperir ar eu 
cyfer yn yr Erthygl honno, pan fo Cyfarwyddeb 96/23/EC, sy'n nodi'r gofynion ar gyfer 
cyflwyno gwybodaeth gyfoes ynghylch rhaglenni monitro gwaddol cenedlaethol gan 
bartneriaid masnachu a gymeradwywyd i fewnforio cynhyrchion sy’n tarddu o 
anifeiliaid i Brydain Fawr, yn parhau i fod yn gymwys. 

• Diwygio Atodiad 6 o'r OCR i gywiro camgymeriad a dod â bwyd a bwyd anifeiliaid 
risg uchel (HRFNAO) o fewn cwmpas y Cyfnod Graddoli Trosiannol gan iddo gael ei 
hepgor yn wreiddiol mewn camgymeriad.  

• Diwygio Atodiad 6 o'r OCR hefyd er mwyn caniatáu diwygio'r Cyfnod Graddoli 
Trosiannol yn annibynnol ar newid y dyddiad gorffen.  

Rhan 4:  

• Diwygio Rheoliad (EC) Rhif 999/2001 - Atal, rheoli a dileu Enseffalopathïau 
Sbyngffurf Trosglwyddadwy. Mae Rheoliad 16 o’r Rheoliadau 2022 arfaethedig  yn 
diwygio deddfwriaeth sy'n ymwneud ag atal, rheoli, a dileu rhai Enseffalopathïau 
Sbyngffurf Trosglwyddadwy (TSEs) i sicrhau bod y ddeddfwriaeth yn parhau i 
weithredu'n effeithiol ym Mhrydain Fawr.  

• Diwygio Atodiad 2 i Benderfyniad y Comisiwn 2007/777/EC a diwygio Atodiad 1 
i Reoliad y Comisiwn (EC) Rhif 119/2009, sy'n ddiwygiadau canlyniadol sydd wedi 
eu methu ac sy'n ofynnol bellach gan fod Rheoliadau Mewnforio Anifeiliaid a 
Chynhyrchion Anifeiliaid a Gwledydd Cymeradwy (Diwygio) 2022 wedi dileu 
gwybodaeth mewn rhestrau trydydd gwledydd o ddeddfwriaeth.. 

• Diwygio Atodiad 1 i Reoliad y Comisiwn (EC) Rhif 798/2008 i dynnu Belarws o'r 
rhestr o bartneriaid masnachu cymeradwy ar gyfer cig dofednod. 

• Diwygio Rheoliad (EC) Rhif 1/2005 a ddargedwir ar ddiogelu anifeiliaid wrth eu 
cludo a gweithrediadau cysylltiedig. Mae Rheoliad 17 yn gwneud cywiriadau i Tudalen y pecyn 5



 

 

Reoliad 1/2005 er mwyn sicrhau bod rhwymedigaethau Atodiad II yn gymwys. Mae 
Atodiad II i Reoliad 1/2005 yn nodi rhwymedigaethau cludwyr, trefnwyr, a cheidwaid 
mewn perthynas â log teithiau allforio, teithiau mewnforio a theithiau cludo da byw a 
cheffylau anghofrestredig o neu drwy Brydain Fawr, waeth beth yw pwrpas y daith, 
pan fo'r daith dros 8 awr. 

• Diwygio Rheoliad Gweithredu’r Comisiwn (EU) Rhif 2020/625. Diben y diwygiad 
yw sicrhau bod y ddarpariaeth drosiannol yn Erthygl 3 o Reoliad 2020/625 (mewn 
perthynas â mewnforio hadau sesamum) yn gymwys mewn perthynas ag unrhyw 
fewnforion a gaiff ddod i mewn i Brydain Fawr sy’n dod o fewn cwmpas y ddarpariaeth 
honno. 

Rhan 5: 

• Diwygio Deddf Amrywogaethau a Hadau Planhigion 1964: Cymru a Lloegr i 
ymdrin â bwlch polisi sydd wedi dod i’r amlwg o fewn Deddf 1964 mewn perthynas â 
diffyg pwerau i wneud rheoliadau mewn cysylltiad â ffrwythau, llysiau a deunyddiau 
plannu addurniadol. 

Rhan 6: 

• Diwygio Rheoliad 38 o Reoliadau Masnachu Anifeiliaid a Chynhyrchion 
Perthynol (TARP) Lloegr. Mae’r diwygiad i TARP yn delio â’r gallu i godi ffioedd ar 
gyfer archwiliadau ar y ffin mewn perthynas â nwyddau sy’n gysylltiedig ag anifeiliaid, 
a bydd yn ofynnol diwygio TARP Cymru hefyd – bydd y diffyg hwn yn cael ei gywiro 
mewn rheoliadau a wneir gan Weinidogion Cymru. 

• Diwygio rheoliad 2 o Reoliadau Iechyd Anifeiliaid (Ffioedd Amrywiol) (Lloegr)  
2018.  Gwneir diwygiad i ddiweddaru’r diffiniad o drydedd gwlad. 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

Economy, Trade, and Rural Affairs Committee 

Consultation 
https://business.senedd.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=489&RPID=1031467995&cp=yes 

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Coed Cadw -The Woodland Trust is the UK's largest woodland conservation charity, working for a 

UK rich in native woods and trees, for people and wildlife. In Wales we have over 26,000 

supporters. We own and manage over 100 sites in Wales covering 2,897 hectares (7,159 acres). 

Our estate is mostly woodland but does include some land on which we maintain grazing through 

farm business tenancies.  

1.2. We have a small landowner advisory team who work with landowners to facilitate new woodland 

creation and the restoration of ancient woodland.  We advocate use of Welsh Government grants 

but also provide some direct support for small scale new woodland creation through our tree 

pack, farm trees and MOREwoods schemes. These schemes use funding from corporate 

partnerships. 

1.3. We support the joint statement produced with other environmental NGOs by Wales Environment 

link which includes six tests of whether the Bill enables sustainable food and farming that co-

delivers on the following:- 

1. Restores and maintains farmland wildlife and the environment,
2. significantly reduce harmful emissions that are contributing to climate change,
3. stops using imported animal feeds linked to destroying the natural world overseas,
4. develops opportunities to diversify food production for local markets.
5. supports opportunities for community ownership, new entrants, better public  access and

engagement in land use decisions, and
6. sets and effective regulatory baseline, backed by fair and clear civil and legal sanctions, that

all farmers, land managers and landowners must comply with.

2. PART 1 – SUSTAINABLE LAND MANAGEMENT

The objectives  

2.1. We support the definition of the four SLM objectives, the need for transformational change and 

Welsh Ministers having a duty to deliver this.  The four objectives taken together provide a 

reasonably definition of what SLM is and we would not want to see this limited by narrower 

definitions. 

2.2. We think the commitment to the delivery of SLM must be the fundamental principle underlying 

the Bill.  The test for all wording should be that it supports this. 

2.3. These 4 objectives seem consistent with the definition of sustainable management of natural 

resources (SMNR) in the Environment (Wales) Act, and we suggest there should be explicit 

reference to this. 

“using natural resources in a way and at a rate that maintains and enhances the resilience of 

ecosystems and the benefits they provide. In doing so, meeting the needs of present 

generations of people without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their 

Tudalen y pecyn 7

Eitem 4

https://business.senedd.wales/mgConsultationDisplay.aspx?id=489&RPID=1031467995&cp=yes


Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

needs, and contributing to the achievement of the well-being goals in the Well-being of Future 

Generations Act.”1  

2.4. Producing food remains a key role but alongside other essential requirements from the land – 

climate change mitigation water resources, timber, biodiversity, landscape and recreation.  This 

requires the seeking the synergies rather than meeting one objective at the exclusion of others. 

2.5. We do not think the SLM objectives can be delivered without effective regulation.  We would like 

to see the Bill include a duty for Ministers to bring forward and maintain a clear summary of 

National Minimum Standards for agriculture. We suggest continuity with the existing GEAC 

requirements is beneficial but would also like to see a further consultation that would allow some 

updating and modifications, for example updating regulatory standards for hedgerows and trees 

on farms.  

2.6. We think there are 3 reasons why this is needed: - 

• Private landowners who are in receipt of public funding must not only comply with the law
and be seen to be complying with the law.

• regulatory compliance is an important fairness baseline, preventing those most dismissive of
impacts on others from gaining competitive advantage.

• There is a need for adequate investment in monitoring and enforcement that has been sadly
lacking in relation to water quality.

2.7. Setting out National Minimum Standards for agriculture would be an opportunity to clarify the 

regulation of trees in agroforestry.   A baseline requirement is that of felling consent, but we 

envisage that the vast majority of agroforestry operations would be within the felling licence 

exemption regime.   Tree Preservation Orders, the Hedgerow Regulations, species protection 

legislation, plant health regulations and planning regulations may all impinge on the 

management or removal of trees on farms and we strongly recommend that scattered tree 

cover on farms does NOT need to be made subject to regulation under the UK Forest Standard. 

The Duty 

2.8. We interpret Section 2(2) to indicate that the Duty on Ministers does not extend to cover forestry 

and other non-agricultural land-uses.  

2.9. We think it is crucial that the Duty on Ministers is to deliver all four objectives in a balanced way 

and not trading one off against another, as described in the Explanatory Memorandum 

 28 “exercise the function in the way that best contributes to achieving those objectives 

(taken together)”.    

We suggest the “taken together” is fundamental and reflects the intent of Wellbeing for Future 

Generations Act.  We think the commitment to the co-delivery of multiple objectives and explicit 

support for land sharing need to be an essential foundation of policy. 

2.10. We are very glad to see that agroforestry is defined as an agricultural activity.  It may be 

necessary to clarify the dividing line between forestry and agroforestry as an agricultural activity, 

especially to clarify regulatory provisions.  

Monitoring and Reporting 

2.11. We agree with the importance of SLM reporting and monitoring and the need for evidence- 

based indicators for each SLM objective. 

1 https://naturalresources.wales/media/678317/introducing-smnr-booklet-english.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 8

https://naturalresources.wales/media/678317/introducing-smnr-booklet-english.pdf


Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

2.12. We would like to see a explicit requirement for a balanced basket of indicators and targets. 

Targets based on individual indicators should be avoided and are contrary to the need to take all 

objectives together in a balanced way.  Focus on individual indicators risk favouring quantity 

over quality with perverse and unintended consequences.   

2.13. We note – 5 (2) that Welsh Minsters must have regard for the State of Natural Resources Report 

and for Natural resources Policy published under the Environment Act but note that under 

section 5 (3) there is no explicit requirement to consult NRW in addition to the Future 

Generations Commissioner.   Given the nature of the SLM objectives we think it essential that 

Ministers consult their principle environmental adviser and regulator. 

2.14. Could it be clarified that data gathered from farmers for SLM reporting will be available to NRW 

to inform the State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR)? 

2.15. We note that SoNaRR explicitly reports on forestry and ask to what extent this report on 

forestry should match what is covered by SLM reporting on agriculture?  

3. PART 2: SUPPORT FOR AGRICULTURE ETC.

3.1. We think it is vital that the power to provide support is expressly subject to the overarching

requirement of achieving the SLM objectives in a balanced way, as explained in the Explanatory 

Memorandum: 

“As set out under the SLM framework, the power to provide support must be exercised in the 

way the Welsh Ministers consider best contributes to achieving the SLM objectives, so far as 

consistent with the proper exercise of that function.” 

3.2. We note that the list of current purposes (p34) does largely match up with the list of outcomes 

given for the SFS. 

3.3. One discrepancy is that the SFS outcome is maximising carbon storage, whereas the Agriculture 

Bill purpose includes reference to sequestration.    The SFS wording, focusing on carbon storage, 

is preferable and clearer. Increasing sequestration does not in its self necessarily contribute 

anything to climate mitigation and can be used to justify continued emissions.   

3.4. We note that this list of purposes is not definitive and may be subsequently changed.  Again the 

Explanatory Memorandum provide reassurances:  “Any support given must contribute towards 

achieving the SLM objectives”   and we understand this to be written into Section 2 of the Bill. 

3.5. The clarification -13 (3) - of how the Impact Report relates to the Sustainable Land Management 

Report is welcome.   

3.6. We would like to see an expectation that agricultural support effectively addresses issues 

identified in SoNaRR.   Given the preponderance of farmland in Wales, we suggest there does 

need to be an explicit link between these reports and the State of Natural Resources Report, 

and to whatever biodiversity target reporting the Welsh Government introduces in light of its 

recent commitment to targets for biodiversity.  

3.7. We welcome the power to extend support to using land as farm woodland or for agroforestry 

and to ancillary activities relating to nature conservation and ecosystem resilience on land used 

for agriculture.  (Sections 48 & 49)  

3.8. We note that section 11 gives Ministers powers to make provision about checking eligibility for 

support but does not require Ministers to bring forward the necessary regulations. We think 

there must be a commitment to do this – see our para 2.5 – 2.7.  

Tudalen y pecyn 9



Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

Part 2 Chapter 2 - powers to modify legislation relating to financial and other support 

3.9. The powers to enable Welsh Ministers to continue operation of existing farming support beyond 

2020 appear to be indefinite?    The Explanatory Memorandum states that these powers are to 

replace time limited powers in the Agriculture Act 2020 but we are not clear whether these 

replacement powers are themselves time limited? 

 3.146 These powers will replace the time limited powers to modify Rural Development, in the 

AA 2020, which may be needed to provide support alongside any new scheme(s) set up under 

the Bill. 

3.10. This implies that Ministers may have the power to run two support schemes in parallel for an 

indefinite period.    This is of concern given that the duty to achieve SLM does not apply to the 

provisions of sections 15 and 16.  

Part 2 Chapter 4 Agricultural Tenancies 

3.11. It has been made clear to us that the typical legal requirements and duration of tenancy 

agreements will make it difficult for tenants to benefit from the SFS.   In particular tenants are 

unlikely to be able to take actions to meet the proposed 10% tree cover threshold for 

qualification for universal payments under SFS.    

3.12. Under legal definitions of agricultural activity generally used for tenancy agreements, tenants 

generally do not have the right to plant trees and do not have responsibility for existing trees. 

They generally do have responsibility for the maintenance of hedgerows and this may offer 

some with a way in to SFS.   

3.13. An ideal situation might be where there is incentive for landlords to invest in tree and habitat 

cover as part of the resources and capital asset of the land, whilst enabling tenants to benefit 

from SFS payments towards the costs of maintaining those assets. 

PART 3 - MATTERS RELATING TO AGRICULTURE AND AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS 

No comments  

4. PART 4 FORESTRY

4.1. Our interest is in the protection and restoration of ancient woodland and ancient trees.  Ancient 

woodland is by far the richest woodland habitat and only covers 4.5 % of Wales.   Most is in 

poor ecological condition and the evidence points to continuing decline.  There is an on-going 

problem of ancient woodland decline, and it is not credible to claim that this is entirely due to 

historic practice. 

4.2. The Welsh Government in its updated Programme for Government 2021 commits to 

“Strengthen the protections for ancient woodlands.” There is nothing currently in law that 

requires the protection and restoration of ancient woodland.   

4.3. We support the new powers proposed and the power to add conditions to felling licences could 

be helpful for ancient woodland conservation, especially in relation to limiting the scale of 

felling, preventing damage to ancient woodland features such as veteran trees and facilitating 

the removal of invasive non-native tree species.  It is not clear whether or how NRW will use the 

proposed new powers to achieve this, or that recording and reporting mechanisms will reveal 

the impact on ancient woodland condition. 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

4.4. We would like to see felling licence conditions used where needed to ensure the requirement 

for the protection of ancient woodland features in line with the minimum requirement of UK 

Forest Standard (UKFS)2:  

• that ‘features of ancient woodland remnants are protected’ and ‘retained’? and

• that in terms of restocking, that applicants must, ‘in ancient semi-natural woodlands,

avoid introducing non-native species unless they would maintain or enhance the

ecological function of the woodland’ (with the onus to applicant to demonstrate this)

4.5. The public information on felling licence applications that is provided by NRW3 does not 

currently include information on whether woods are ancient or have other protected status and 

does not include the outcome of the licence applications or any information on felling licence 

conditions.  It is not possible to assess the impact of felling from information on this register.  

4.6. We ask whether the Bill can be amended to ensure monitoring and reporting on the impact of 

felling consents that is equivalent to the requirements for reporting on the achievements of the 

SLM objectives and the support scheme impact report?  

4.7. We would like to see support through SFS for the care and protection of ancient and veteran 

trees. 

4.8. Ideally we would like to see other measures to protect ancient and veteran trees and small 

areas of ancient woodland, especially those of special heritage importance. 

PART 5 WILDLIFE 

No comments 

5. PART 6 – GENERAL

Purpose and intended effect of the legislation: 

5.1. We welcome the updating of the definition of agriculture and we support the definition of 

“ancillary activity” split into business actions and environmental that include: 

49 (a) taking action, on land used for agriculture— 

to create and manage habitats, or for other purposes relating to nature 15 

conservation, 

to mitigate and adapt to climate change, or 

to maintain and enhance the resilience of ecosystems; 

And described in the Explanatory Memorandum: 

3.301 “The environmental actions that form part of the definition of “ancillary activity” 

capture steps which may be taken to assist in the achievement of the SLM objectives on land 

used for agriculture. These steps may not directly produce an agricultural product, but 

capture many of the wider actions that many farmers in Wales already undertake. Examples 

could include natural flood defence, energy management plans and ecosystem creation such 

as beetle banks.” 

2 https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/environmental-topics/woodlands-and-forests/uk-
forestry-standard/?lang=en  
3 https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/tree-felling-and-other-regulations/forestry-public-
register/felling-licence-register/?lang=en  

Tudalen y pecyn 11

https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/environmental-topics/woodlands-and-forests/uk-forestry-standard/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-advice/environmental-topics/woodlands-and-forests/uk-forestry-standard/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/tree-felling-and-other-regulations/forestry-public-register/felling-licence-register/?lang=en
https://naturalresources.wales/permits-and-permissions/tree-felling-and-other-regulations/forestry-public-register/felling-licence-register/?lang=en


Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

5.2. We point out that many of these ancillary activities are necessary to maintain the sustainability 

of agricultural production  

5.3. Glad to see specific inclusion of agroforestry in clause 48  on the meaning of “agriculture” and 

related references:- 

48 (1)  (f) using land as farm woodland or for agroforestry; 

5.4. We think it is necessary to redefine the previously sharp separation of agricultural land and 

woodland as separate land uses and recognise the extent to which tree cover can significantly 

overlap with agricultural land use.   

6. Any potential barriers to the implementation of the Bill’s provisions and whether the Bill takes

account of them (including the UK Internal Market Act 2020 and any international law?;

6.1. The barriers to entry for agricultural tenants noted above 

7. The appropriateness of the powers in the Bill for Welsh Ministers to make subordinate

legislation (as set out in Chapter 5 of Part 1 of the Explanatory Memorandum)?

7.1. We support the view presented by Wales Environment Link that secondary legislation should 

mostly require affirmative motions to ensure scrutiny and debate and democratic process. 

8. Whether there are any unintended consequences arising from the Bill?

8.1. No comments 

9. The financial implications of the Bill (as set out in Part 2 of the Explanatory Memorandum)?

9.1. The need to cost out the administrative costs is reasonable but we think attemps to value 

benefits of the changes to forestry regulation using traditional CBA have been pretty pointless 

9.2. The costs of not doing what the Bill sets out to do would be calamitous, the benefits of doing so 

are huge, but are unquantifiable by established financial procedures.   

9.3. The benefits include not continuing to degrade agricultural capacity and sustainability; trying to 

mitigate further climate instability; arresting biosphere collapse, and positive outcomes in the 

delivery on public benefits, for example relating to wellbeing, and increasing the nations stock 

of national capital. 

9.4. More prosaically the fundamental benefit of the proposed forestry regulation measures is to 

create a level playing field.  rather than a race to the bottom with no effective constraint on the 

minority of people willing to do the most damage and impose impacts on others. 

9.5. We raised similar points in our response to the consultation on the Audit Wales program4.  

9.6. Our suggestions on where the audit program could have impact, included the following  

• Guide and demonstrate how the pursuit of targets and financial analysis should reflect

and by balanced by application of the goals, principles and ways of working set out in the

Well-being of Future Generations Act and the Socio-economic Duty.     Examples could

include establishing financial checks and balances that fully cost impacts on stakeholders,

public benefits and natural capital values, and prevent the rush to renewable energy

installations or afforestation do not damage biodiversity and drive up inequality.

• Enforce quality requirements for the auditing and reporting of carbon emissions,

sequestration and storage

4 Audit Wales:  Seeking Views on the Auditor General’s Work Programme - March 2022 

Tudalen y pecyn 12

https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/2022-03/seeking_views_on_auditor_general_work_programme_english.pdf


Coed Cadw – the Woodland Trust - Agriculture (Wales) Bill 

• Implement the recommendations of the Dasgupta Review - Provide guidance and

examples of the accounting for dependences and impacts on Nature in project and service

financial assessments, and the accounting for  of climate and nature related financial risk.

9.7. We supported the Auditor General’s proposal to look at agricultural and rural support, noting 

that: 

The issues raised above about valuing natural capital and ecosystem services are relevant 

to this, enabling farmers and other landowners to receive recognition and income for non-

market benefits that they provide to society.   There are significant risks that public funding 

does not support public benefit outcomes and that scheme complexity and inflexibility 

results in perverse outcomes. 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



 
 
 
 

1                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

Agriculture (Wales) Bill 2022 
CONFOR EVIDENCE TO THE ENVIRONMENT TRADE & RURAL TRADE COMMITTEE 

1. Introduction 
Representing Forestry and the Wood using sector.  

Confor is the not-for-profit organisation for the UK’s sustainable forestry and wood-using businesses.  

Through our 1,500 members, we represent a workforce of over 67,000 in the UK, employed across the 
whole forestry and wood supply chain from landowners and tree nurseries to forest managers, 
harvesters, wood fuel suppliers, sawmills, and wood panel businesses.  

We represent 90% of tree nurseries, 95% of wood processors including wood panel manufacturers, 
and our members look after 90% of the total managed woodland in the UK. Our members are located 
in rural areas and provide good career opportunities where often these are scarce. As the net zero 
agenda provides new opportunities for the sector to expand and innovate, we are more committed 
than ever to combine a thriving green economy with sustainability. 

 

2. Confor response to the Agriculture Bill 
 

Our responses to the Agriculture Bill are drafted alongside the 6 main parts of the bill. 
 

2 SUSTAINABLE LAND MANAGEMENT 
 

Objectives 
 

2.1 Confor supports the four objectives set out for SLM within the structure of the bill. The 
definitions clearly state the potential of the role of land manager and going forward it is essential 
that the spirit of these operations is embedded into enabling legislation within the SFS 

 
2.2 The reference to other goods within the definition is welcome but we feel there is some 

ambiguity of the scale and potential importance of those products which include timber and 
wood fibre. 
The value of achieving multiple outcomes must be fairly measured against the risks of pursuing 
single interest management outcomes. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



 
 
 
 

2                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

2.3 The structuring of the 3rd objective “to maintain and enhance the resilience of ecosystems and 
the benefits they provide” especially noting 1(6) factors relevant to the resilience of ecosystems 
is of significant interest when engaging in discussions regarding land use change. 
 
Many of the barriers to land use change reflect the interpretation of the wording “Maintain & 
Enhance” but do not acknowledge the degraded landscapes that are experienced across 
significant areas of habitat in Wales. Whilst restoration of these landscapes may be possible the 
risk of further degradation or likelihood of management regime change are not factors that are 
considered by regulators in the wider context of delivering an improving landscape in Wales. 

 
Duty 

2.4 We support the obligations placed on Welsh Ministers in delivering their duty under the bill 
but notes that the functions appear to exclude the delivery of sustainable forestry and 
afforestation targets.   

2.5 We support the emphasis created by the wording within 2(1) “Welsh Ministers must exercise 
each function referred to in this section in the way they consider best contributes to achieving 
the sustainable land management objectives” if coupled with an amendment to function 
which includes: 

(b) (iii) agro forestry, afforestation on farm as part of or ancillary to the operation of the 
agricultural holding and management of existing woodland and forestry. 

 

Monitoring and Reporting 

2.6 We agree that clear and accurate measurement, and reporting of SLM measures, is essential 
for the delivery of the objectives of the bill.  

2.7 Targets must be appropriate and account for external regional influences that may make 
compliance simple in one area and complex or impossible in another. 

2.8 Why is Natural Resources Wales not listed as a statutory consultee to preparation or revision 
of indicators or targets? 

2.9  We welcome the obligation placed on the Welsh Government to prepare and publish a report 
setting out the assessment of cumulative progress and delivery of objectives, including 
reasons for failure, non determination and contribution to overall objectives. We recommend 
this also include an obligation to report on why successful outcomes have been achieved. 

2.10 What is the role of Environment and Rural Affairs Monitoring & Modelling Programme in 
setting and monitoring these standards and as a major evidence provider in Wales should 
their importance be recognised more specifically within the bill? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



 
 
 
 

3                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

3 SUPPORT FOR AGRICULTURE 
 

3.1 We welcome the support of agriculture and ancillary activities but highlight that the support 
must be equal and proportionate for other land-based system. Historically forestry has 
covered approximately 14% on the land and has received as little as 2% of the RDP budget. If 
the Senedd is committed to delivering on the climate change afforestation targets as specified 
by the UK Climate Change Committee, then secured long term funding will be required. 

3.2 We note that food production is expressed in 8(2)(a) where elsewhere in the bill it is combined 
as “produce food and other goods” 

3.3 Under section 11(1) (b & c) – reference should be made to proportionate and reasonable. 
Grant reclaims under Glastir was neither of these subsequently alarming many farmers who 
withdrew from projects involving fencing due to potential scale of fine/penalty. 

3.4  We welcome the reference to maximising sequestration and storage of carbon. Clarity is 
required over the reference or measurement system that is used to assess this. Some products 
may leave the farm gate and have long lifespans as locked material and these are not 
acknowledged in our current carbon accounting systems. 

4 AGRICULTURAL TENANCIES 
 

4.1  We support the Section 23 of the Bill which will amend Section 19A of the Agricultural 
Holdings Act 1986 (AHA) to allow a tenant farmer the ability to object to a refusal from 
their landlord for consent to enter a scheme introduced under the financial assistance 
provisions of the Bill. Section 19A also provides for AHA tenants to object to their 
landlords’ unreasonable refusal to allow consent for activities required to comply with a 
statutory duty. We note that many tenant farmers are excluded from afforestation 
schemes at present due to the terms of their AHA. 

4.2 We seek to raise that the bill fails to address the issues for the Farm Business Tenancy 
holders who could remain excluded from engagement in schemes. FBT’s cover around 
300,000 hectares of Welsh farmland and it an oversight to not consider them as part of 
this legislation. 

4.3  S19a fails to fully address grounds for appeal by the tenant to landlord objection where 
consent is required and does not whilst some concerns may be raised over availability of 
land to let being diminished the status quo should be one of equal capacity to manage the 
land for SMNR outcomes. 

4.4 As a general comment, whilst it may be the case that some landlords will seek to enter 
into alternative land use schemes, the existing tenanted sector is essential to maintain the 
cultural, social and farming heritage of Wales. Tenant farmers will still be limited in their 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 
 
 
 

4                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

ability to engage with the SFS and principally deliver the requirement for 10% tree cover. 
This feels like a grave oversight in creating opportunities for both Landlords and Tenants 
to benefit from the SFS and lead in creating partnership models that may be of benefit to 
the wider industry.  

5 MATTERS RELATING TO AGRICULTURE AND AGRICULTURAL 
PRODUCTS 
 

5.1 No comments on this element of the bill 

 

6 FORESTRY 
 
6.1 In response to S35 Confor, its members, and the overwhelming response from the 

professional forestry sector is that the felling licence system is effective in its operation. 
Where concerns are raised about felling it is often surrounding illegal felling, felling under 
Planning Law (linked to planning permissions) or a breach of the existing environmental 
conditions that all felling as already obliged to comply with under the Forestry Act 1967. 

6.2 We would welcome an informed debate on this matter and do not feel that the previous 
Senedd debate or members undertook due diligence when approving consent to change the 
Forestry Act. If it is considered to require amendment, this should be dealt with through 
separate legislation. Lessons could be learned from the example of the Scottish Forestry Act 
(2018) which covered similar issues.  

6.3 Further evidence must be provided by Welsh Government and other stakeholders to detail 
where the failures are, and whether the current system supported by compliance with the UK 
Forestry Standard (UKFS) is failing. If licences are subject to uncertainty that will be transferred 
to commercial contracts with consequences for the timber supply chain which is very much at 
the heart of Wales’s Green Recovery and the decarbonisation of construction and housing. 

6.4 The specific problem that the legislator appears to be trying to address here is incompetent 
or illegal felling. It would be wholly unjust to penalise the professional industry because of 
rogue operators. The loss of trees and woods to bad practice by developers is of significant 
concern but this could be addressed through planning legislation far more effectively. 
Increasing the cost and complexity of all management operations in privately owned 
woodlands by creating conditioned felling licences (especially where licences are currently 
only valid for 2 years) is highly likely to push owners into either illegal felling or abandonment 
of management all together. This would have a highly detrimental effect on habitat and 
biodiversity outcomes. 

6.5 Whilst the ENGO sector and some single interest lobbyists have called for more stringent 
regulations to protect woodland habitat from further declines, it is imperative to understand 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 
 
 
 

5                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

the drivers of these declines, which often are caused by neglect and failure to manage. What 
is clear, is that sustainable management is identified as the one area where, with a high degree 
of confidence the State of Natural Resources report considered the status of woodland to be 
improving through certification under UKWAS. This type of conservation management would 
be jeopardised by the tightening of felling licenses. It would be far better to develop positive 
solutions to these concerns such as developing on farm and urban tree management plans 
which take account of important habitat such as veteran trees and red squirrels.  

6.5 We strongly recommend that if the Bill is enacted in its current form, felling licences must 
return to being for a 5-year period in line with England, Scotland and Wales prior to 2013 and 
Long-Term Management plans must be substantially reviewed to make them fit for purpose. 

6.6 The SFS has created a further disconnect between farming and forestry and this is 
exacerbating a two-tier system for farming and forestry. This urgently needs to be addressed 
if we are to be successful in bringing woodlands into management and meeting our 
afforestation targets. 

6.7 We are broadly in support with the proposals contained within S36 & S37 of the bill to Amend, 
Suspend or Revoke felling licences. The failure to be able to amend felling licences once issued 
has meant that an external agreement was necessary between the landowner and regulator 
if an amendment was required. This was generally effective but not an optimum solution 
where land ownership had changed and the new owners sought to go in a different 
management direction. 

6.8 We are highly concerned regarding the implication of S24D “Suspension, amendment or 
revocation of tree felling licence where no breach of condition”. Where a licence has been 
applied for which requires public and regulatory consultation, it should not be possible for 
suspension due to the impact on Natural Beauty or geographical or physiographical features 
to be contrived. The occurrence of Flora or Fauna or impact on habitat would have to be of 
one of the major statutory designations and should therefore fall within compliance of other 
legislation. We assert that this “catch all” category must be removed as given the inconsistent 
performance of the regulator there is significant fear of misuse of these powers. 

 This has potential to create a substantial impact to timber harvesting as exemplified by the 
situation in the Republic of Ireland with the “objection without consequence” which ground 
the whole Irish forestry and timber sector to a halt and required urgent intervention by the 
Government 

6.9 We welcome the appeals process and compensation provision detailed in S38 24E put forward 
for landowners who successfully overturn suspension or revocation of a notice 

6.10 We are in support of S40 of the bill creating and unlimited fine for illegal felling. 

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 
 
 
 

6                CONSULTATION               Anthony Geddes – anthony@confor.org.uk          20 October 2022 
 

 

7 WILDLIFE 
 
7.1 No comments on this element of the bill 

 

8 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

8.1 No comments on this element of the bill 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 20



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 49

Eitem 5



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 67



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 74

Eitem 7


	Agenda
	2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd
	2.2 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a'r Trefnydd
	4 Bil Amaethyddiaeth (Cymru): Sesiwn Dystiolaeth 6
	Confor - Papur tystiolaeth (Saesneg yn unig)
	Briff Ymchwil

	5 Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Bil Protocol Gogledd Iwerddon
	Briff Ymchwil

	7 Preifat

